
Adult Commissioning Committee  
 

Dear Member, 
 

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Adult Commissioning Committee to be 
held as follows for the transaction of the business indicated. 
David Wilcock 

Monitoring Officer 

 
DATE: Wednesday, 13 October 2021 

 
TIME:  2.00 pm 

 
VENUE: Microsoft Teams Meeting 

 
 

AGENDA 

 
1   Apologies for Absence  

 

 

2   Declarations of Interest  

 

 

3   Draft Minutes of the Meeting Held on 8th September 2021  

 
(Pages 1 - 6) 

 ITEMS FOR ASSURANCE  

 

 

4   Integrated Care / Community Health Care Update - Tori Quinn  

 

(Pages 7 - 16) 

5   Adult Social Care Update - Paul Walsh  

 
(Pages 17 - 22) 

6   Finance Report - David Warhurst  

 
(Pages 23 - 28) 

 ITEMS FOR INFORMATION  

 

 

7   Any Other Business  

 

 

8   Dates of Future Meetings  

 

 Wednesday 10 November at 14:00;  

 Wednesday 12 January 2022 at 14:00;  

 Tuesday 01 February 2022 at 14:00;  

 Wednesday 09 March 2022 at 14:00. 

 

 

 
Contact Officer:   

Carol Eddleston E-Mail: carol.eddleston@salford.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Minutes of the Meeting of the Adults’ Commissioning Committee held via MS Teams 

on Wednesday 8th September 2021 

Meeting started at 14:00 
Meeting ended at 15:18 

Present 

Cllr Damian Bailey Executive Support Member for Social Care & Mental 

Health 

Mr David Flinn (DF)   Neighbourhood Lead - CCG 

Cllr Bill Hinds (BH)  Lead Member for Finance & Support Services – SCC 

Cllr Tracy Kelly (TK) Statutory Deputy City Mayor and Lead Member for 

Housing & Neighbourhoods - CCG 

Dr David McKelvey (DMcK)  Neighbourhood Lead - CCG 

Cllr John Merry (JM) Deputy City Mayor and Lead Member for Adult Social 

Care - Chair 

Mrs Charlotte Ramsden (CR)  Strategic Director People – SCC 

Dr Tom Regan (TR)   Clinical Director for Commissioning - CCG  

Mr David Warhurst (DW)   Chief Finance Officer – CCG 

 

In Attendance 

Mr Harry Golby (HG)   Deputy Director of Commissioning – CCG 

Mr Chris Hesketh (CH)  Head of Financial Management - SCC 

Sam Mansfield (SM)   Public Health Strategic Manager - SCC 

Ms Gillian Mclauchlan (GM)  Deputy Director of Public Health – CCG/SCC 

Ms Diane Morrison (DM)  SRFT 

Ms Alison Paige (AP)   Salford CVS 

Dr Girish Patel  (GP)   PCNS/SPCT 

Mr Bruce Poole (BP) Salford CVS 

Mr Judd Skelton (JS) Assistant Director Integrated Commissioning – 

CCG/SCC 

Ms Jessica Ta’ati (JT) Integrated Commissioning Manager -  

Ms Carol Eddleston (CAE) Democratic Services – SCC (minutes) 
 

Apologies for Absence 

Mr Steve Dixon (SD)   Chief Accountable Officer – CCG 

Mrs Joanne Hardman (JH) Chief Finance Officer – SCC 

Dr Tara Kearney (TK) SRFT 

Ms Sharon Lea (SL) SRFT 

Mrs Karen Proctor (KP)  Director of Commissioning – CCG 

Dr Jeremy Tankel (JT)   Medical Director - CCG – Co-Chair 

Dr Peter Turkington (PT)   SRFT 

Ms Claire Vaughan (CV) Director of Quality and Head of Medicines Optimisation 

– CCG 

Mr Paul Walsh (PW) Assistant Director, Integrated Commissioning –    

CCG/SCC 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

1. Apologies for Absence 

The apologies above were noted. 

 

2. Declarations of Interest 

AP declared an interest in Lot 1 of agenda/minute item 4 Age Well Specification. 
 

3. Draft Minutes of the Meeting Held on 14th July 2021 

The minutes of the meeting held on 14th July 2021 were approved as a correct record. 
 

4. Age Well Specification 

JT and SM presented a report on the Age Well Model and Specifications for Lot 1 Population 

wide provision for older adults in Salford and Lot 2 Prevention and Early Intervention for older 

adults in Salford.  

These specifications had been drawn up following a review by the Public Health and Integrated 

Commissioning Teams of existing provision  

- Hospital Aftercare, Social Rehabilitation and Dementia Support – contracts with Age 

UK Salford commissioned by the CCG 

- Community Assets (Age Friendly Salford) – contracts with Salford CVS then 
subcontracted, commissioned by the CCG, Tech and Tea commissioned by SCC 

It had been proposed that the existing contracts should be extended to a coterminous end and 

to allow a joint procurement exercise to be initiated late 2021/early 2022 and new five-year 

contracts to commence in October 2022. It had also been proposed to novate the three 

contracts with Age UK to SCC 

Discussions highlighted the following: 

- The proposal to novate contracts and proceed with a joint procurement exercise 

seemed sensible but had to be considered on the understanding that future 

intentions with regard to integration following the disbanding of CCGs were not yet 

agreed; 

- Social prescribing was central to this and working together with different partners, 

community groups and older people’s champions was crucial to ensure awareness, 

communication and engagement with older adults in Salford; 

- There would also be opportunities to link in with the Living Well initiatives and the 

work that Gaddum was doing with carers; 

- This work was a helpful template for bringing together commissioning and public 

health at a population level and working up; 

- The proposed timescales for submission of tenders needed to be reviewed as they 
currently included the Christmas and New Year period. 

The Adults’ Commissioning Committee approved the Age Well model and 

specifications and endorsed the proposals to extend the existing contracts for a six 

months period and to novate the contracts with Age UK from Salford CCG to Salford 
City Council. 

 

Page 2



5. Cure Tobacco Addiction Service 

SM presented a report which provided an overview of the implementation of the CURE 

tobacco addiction programme to date at Salford Royal Foundation Trust and sought 

approval of funding for the continuation of the programme, alongside the existing Hospital 

Stop Smoking Service. This was on the basis that the evidence presented in this paper took 

a whole system approach to tacking tobacco dependency and the assurances of the wider 
work taking place which underpinned the longer-term effectiveness of this programme.  

Salford had the highest smoking prevalence in Greater Manchester, with almost 1 in 5 

people still smoking. Whilst rates nationally had dropped in recent years, Salford’s rate was 

not coming down at the required pace to meet the national Smoke Free ambitions of a 

smoke free generation (prevalence below 5%) by 2030. The CURE project was a secondary 

care programme that treated tobacco addiction. The initial pilot was delivered at 

Wythenshawe Hospital, it was then rolled out across all GM sites through the GM 
Transformation Fund and was nationally mandated in the NHS Long Term Plan.  

The delivery to date at SRFT had been disrupted due to COVID-19. For example face to 

face support was not an option when the programme first launched, and support was given 

over the phone. As a result, the outcomes were not meeting the projections, however, it was 

understood that other GM localities were having similar issues and work would be 
undertaken over the next 12 months to understand this. 

Discussions highlighted the following: 

- Concern that the programme was not currently delivering as originally projected; 
- Differing views on the length of the extension to funding that should be approved (12 

months would allow more data to be collected and evaluated but six months would 

offer an opportunity to use the funding elsewhere more quickly if outcomes did not 

improve); 

- Comparison of current performance across GM was difficult as some authorities were 

reluctant to share their data and senior elected member influence to share data 

would be appreciated; 

- Acknowledgement that some smokers may not quit immediately after completing the 

programme but the seed would have been planted and they may go on to quit 

permanently after one or more additional attempts; 

- Broader concerns around smoking rates in Salford and the need for a holistic 

approach across the city was imperative.  Targeting young people was crucial and 

the value of peer pressure & pressure from children on parents to stop could not be 

underestimated.  Adults and young people could be targeted prior to admission not 

just once they were in hospital; 

- Clinical and political leadership was vital. 

The Adults’ Commissioning Committee agreed to support continued funding for a 

further six months to sustain the CURE Tobacco Addiction Programme and requested 
a further assurance paper at that time. 

 

6. Aspire (CIC) Contract – VAT Impact and Options(also Turning Point) 

CH provided a detailed explanation of the impact and options in relation to VAT on the Aspire 

(CIC) contract which provided services including Day Services, Learning Disability Supported 

Tenancies, Shared Lives, Learning Disability Respite and Humphrey Booth Resource Centre, 
to more than 800 individuals who were eligible under the Care Act 2014.  

The contract was established for a five-year period with the cost to the council scheduled to 

rise each year and planned to have risen to £10.9m by year five. Salford City Council novated 

the contract to Salford Royal Foundation Trust (SRFT) on 1 July 2016, with Commissioners Page 3



continuing to support the contract management function for a period of one year. Since 1st 

July 2017 SRFT had been responsible for the contract management and quality assurance of 

Aspire, just as they were with the rest of the adult social care supply chain which novated to 

SRFT in July 2016, meeting Salford City Council’s Care Act 2014 responsibilities regarding 
market management. 

The current arrangements for delivery of Aspire services had resulted in an unintended VAT 

impact on SRFT of c.£470k pa. This had arisen from HMRC clarifying their position on 

integrated arrangements which meant that SRFT would be unable to recover all its  VAT 

expenditure in respect of the Aspire services. SRFT had been in discussion with HMRC but 
had been unable to resolve the situation.  

Salford City Council had sought advice from Price Waterhouse Coopers on options that might 
relieve the situation: 

 Option 1 - the current situation, where a VAT impact fell on SRFT  

 Option 2 mitigated the VAT impact on SRFT, but created a partial exemption risk for the 

council  

 Option 3 mitigated the VAT impact on SRFT, without creating a partial exemption risk for 
the council, but involved principle and contractual changes to the current arrangements. 

Option 2 involved SRFT retaining responsibility for the services but sub-contracting with SCC 

for their provision (SCC further sub-contracting with Aspire). Option 3 involved SRFT returning 
the responsibility for the services to SCC, who would then contract with Aspire. 

Normally, organisations could not fully recover all their VAT expenditure where they had 

income sources that were exempt from VAT. As a council, SCC enjoyed “section 33” status 

which gave it certain VAT benefits, including the ability to fully reclaim all VAT, even on exempt 

supplies, so long as the council stayed within a partial exemption calculation limit. Should it 

exceed that calculated limit, the impact on SCC was potentially up to £4m. While options 2 

and 3 both resolved the identified VAT impact for SRFT, option 2 threatened the council’s 
partial exemption calculation. 

The report also noted that a similar situation existed for the Turning Point contract and that, if 

it could not be resolved, a similar solution would be possible. At the meeting, it was confirmed 

that other routes had been exhausted and it was therefore necessary to also return these 
services to SCC, who would then contract with Turning Point. 

Members were highly supportive of option 3 which would see the contract for provision of 

these services being returned to the city council from SRFT. With this option the service could 

still be sub-contracted from Aspire CIC. The SRFT market management team would continue 

to manage the contract to ensure consistency with the contract management of the rest of the 
care sector. Members also supported a similar course for the Turning Point contract. 

The Adults’ Commissioning Committee gave its approval for the provision of the 

services to the end user to be returned to SCC from SRFT and for the contractual 

changes set out in section 5 of the report to be put into effect.  

 

7. Finance Report  

DW presented the report which provided an update relating to year to date financial 

performance and forecast and associated risks to the financial plan of the Adults Integrated 
Fund for 2021/22.  

The adults’ element of the Integrated Fund was currently forecasting to be overspent by £4.4m 

which represented a worsening in the position by £2.2m since reported to the July ACC 
meeting.  

Page 4



The committee noted that the main movements were: 

- £1.9m shortfall in client and customer receipts  

- £0.3m community equipment store increased costs  

- £0.5m continuing healthcare increased costs, offset by 

- (£0.5m) slippage in planned investment. 

A number of mitigations provided reasonable assurance that the opening deficit position of 
£3.1m for the adults fund was deliverable.  

These mitigations included: 

- A likely 0.5m underspend on the independent sector provider (Oaklands) whilst this was 

currently being forecast as breakeven in line with the initial Greater Manchester 

guidance, the overall ICS forecast underspend meant that local underspends could be 

retained instead of being ringfenced for overspending localities 

 

- The forecast on client income reduction was expected to be a worst case scenario, and 

improvements were expected before the end of the year, and 

 
- There was likely to be further slippage on committed developments. 

The Adults’ Commissioning Committee noted the financial position for 2021/22, the 

savings programme for 2021/22 to deliver a balanced plan and the risks outlined in 

section 5 of the report. 
 

8. Adult Commissioning Report 

This month’s comprehensive report included information and updates on the following: 

 Mental Health Supported Accommodation Commissioning Review  

 Public Health England Prevention and Promotion Fund for Better Mental Health  

 Month of Hope 
 Information and Advice Review Update 

 Post (Long) Covid 

 Procurement for Direct Access Diagnostics 

 Effective Use of Resources Service 

 Weight Management Services 

The ACC noted the report without further discussion. 
 

9. Any Other Business 

There were no items of any other business. 
 

10. Dates of Future Meetings 

 Wednesday 13 October at 14:00;  

 Wednesday 10 November at 14:00;  

 Wednesday 12 January 2022 at 14:00;  

 Tuesday 01 February 2022 at 14:00;  

 Wednesday 09 March 2022 at 14:00. 
 

 
Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

   
 

 

    
    
    
     

Adults Commissioning Committee 

13th October 2021 
AGENDA ITEM NO & PAPER NAME: 4 Integrated Care / Community Health Care 

Update  
 
Item for: Information (Please delete as appropriate) 
 

Report of: 
Dr Tom Regan – Clinical Director of Commissioning 

Tori Quinn – Head of Service Improvement 

 
Date of Paper: 4th October 2021 

In case of query, please contact: Tori Quinn – tori.quinn@nhs.net 

Strategic Priorities:  
(Please tick as appropriate) 

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research  
Adult Services x 

Children’s and Maternity Services  
All Age Mental Health  

Primary Care  
Enabling Transformation x 

Mayoral Priorities: 
(Please tick as appropriate) 

Tackling poverty and inequality  
Reducing Health Inequalities x 

Skills and Education (A Learning City)  
Affordable Housing  

Transport and Digital Connectivity  
Tackling the Climate Change Emergency  

Vibrant Place and Spaces  
Creating an Economy for All  

Page 7

Agenda Item 4

https://www.salford.gov.uk/cmpriorities


 

   
 

 

    
    
    
     

Purpose of Paper:                                    
 

The purpose of this paper is to provide Commissioning Committee with an update on 
adult’s integrated care and community health services, the work programme (s) of the 
Integrated Community Based Care Commissioning Group (ICBCCG) and the Adult’s 
Advisory Board (AAB) and End of Life Services. This paper covers the period September 
2020 to September 2021. 

Adults Commissioning Committee is asked to note the content of this report and comment 
as appropriate. 

 

 

 
 

Further information 

How will this benefit the health and wellbeing of 
Salford residents, or the CCG or City Council? 

 
Paper provided for information only 

 

How does this paper address health inequalities 
and promote inclusion? 

Paper provided for information only 

What risks may arise as a result of this paper 
and how will they be mitigated? 

N/A – any risks pertaining to the individual 
services/projects that are reported in this paper, 
will be managed within the usual risk 
management processes. 

Does this address any existing high risks facing 
the organisation and how does it reduce them? 

Paper provided for information only 

Are there any possible conflicts of interest 
associated with this paper? 

N/A 

Will any current services or roles be affected by 
issues within this paper and what are they? 

Paper provided for information only 

Note: Where appropriate, please ensure detail is provided. 

 

Page 8



 

   
 

 

    
    
    
     

Document Development 

Has there been Public Engagement? N/A 

Has there been Clinical Engagement? N/A 

Has the impact on Salford socially, economically 
and environmentally been considered? 

N/A 

Has there been an analysis of any impacts on 
equality? N/A 

Has legal advice been obtained? N/A 

Has this been to any groups or committees for 
engagement, comments, or approval?  N/A 

Note: Where relevant, please provide detail and ensure that it is clear how and when particular stakeholders were 
involved in this work, that there is clarity of what the key message/decision was, and whether amendments were 
requested about any part of the work.

Page 9



 

    

    
    
     

Integrated Care / Community Health Care Update 
 

1.  Executive Summary 

   
 
This paper provides an update on the integrated care programme and the work programme(s) of 
the Integrated Community Based Care Group (ICBCCG) and Adult’s Advisory Board (AAB)  and End 
of Life Services for the months September 2020 to September 2021. 
 
The paper offers a brief summary and overview of the current status of services taking into account 
the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic. 
 
The Adults Commissioning Committee is asked to note the contents of the update provided. 
 

 

2. Community Health Services Updates  
 

2.1  Due to the Covid-19 pandemic the Integrated Community Based Care Commissioning Group 
(ICBCCG) has not regularly met since 17th March 2020. This decision was taken due to the 
pressures the Covid-19 pandemic has caused right across the health and care system. The 
CCG is using alternative meetings like Adult’s Advisory Board and the Integration Board to 
support decisions which previously may have gone through ICBCCG. However, there have 
been 6 ad-hoc meetings of ICBCCG over the reporting period to discuss specific topics. The 
scope of the topics discussed by ICBCCG is such that some of the matters are presented to 
Primary Care Commissioning Committee and others are presented to Adults Commissioning 
Committee. The items discussed were as follows: 

 
 September 2020 – Discussion about the Minor Ailments Scheme (MAS). The MAS is 

a local additional service provided by some community pharmacies to diagnose and treat 
minor ailments without the need to see a GP. A new specification for the service had 
been written and required clinical sign off following approval at the Primary Care 
Commissioning Committee. This was not for a new commissioned service; the meeting 
was to approve changes to the existing service. There were no proposed changes to the 
budget for the service. The group approved implementation of the new MAS specification 
 

 November 2020 – Community Dietetics Pathway. This was first discussed at ICBCCG 

in May 2019 as there were concerns the service was not meeting Key Performance 
Indicators (KPIs). It was agreed Salford Royal should work to understand capacity and 
demand and return to ICBCCG with a business case, if required, and therefore the 
service had returned. The service was advised to continue discussions internally at the 
Trust and with PCN clinical leads/managers 

 
 February 2021 – Special Allocations Scheme. The Special Allocations Scheme is a 

scheme whereby the CCG commissions specialist GP services for patients who have 
been removed from their practice list, usually due to violent or threatening behaviour. A 
new specification had been developed to ensure the service met national guidance and 
ICBCCG was asked for clinical sign off. The main change was to the referral process and 
to provide greater clarity on delivery arrangements. The group suggested some 

Page 10



 

    

    
    
     

amendments to the specification and agreed that once these were made the 
specification could be implemented 

 
 April 2021 – CURE Business Case. CURE is part of the Greater Manchester Health 

and Social Care Partnership “Making Smoking History” programme. The business case 
was proposing the permanent establishment of a CURE service at Salford Royal. The 
group approved of the ethos of the case and the service. The business case was 
presented to the September meeting of the Adults Commissioning Committee 

 
 June 2021 – BPM@Home. ICBC attendees were asked to share their opinions on the 

Greater Manchester BPM@Home (Blood Pressure Monitoring at Home) 
programme.  NHS England and NHS Improvement has procured around 220,000 blood 
pressure (BP) monitors. Clinical teams should use these to target patients with poorly 
controlled hypertension, prioritising those most at risk of becoming seriously ill with 
COVID, or suffering heart attacks and strokes.  During the COVID-19 pandemic, patients 
with cardiovascular risk factors may not have been receiving their usual reviews and 
subsequent treatment adjustment for their hypertension. NHS England modelling has 
estimated that a 9-month period of disruption to the delivery of routine care for those 
diagnosed with hypertension could result in around 12,000 additional acute 
cardiovascular events (strokes and heart attacks) or deaths over a three year follow up, 
as compared to what might have been expected from pre-COVID levels of 
achievement.  Therefore, home blood pressure monitoring has been identified as a 
priority for cardiovascular disease (CVD) management. Members of ICBC agreed to roll 
this offer out to the GP practices in Salford.  

 
Salford was allocated 940 monitors to be distributed amongst practices.  By mid-
September, of the 37 eligible practices (Care Homes practice was excluded), 31 
practices had collected their monitors with 4 practices declining the offer.  2 practices did 
not respond to the offer.  50 monitors were handed out to SRFTs heart failure team.  It is 
expected that all monitors will be with identified patients by the end of October 2021. BP 
readings will then be submitted by patients and subsequently coded by the practices 
within the patient’s clinical record.  NHS England will extract this data on a bi-monthly 
basis and report back to Greater Manchester 

 
 June 2021 – 2 Week-Wait Tele-dermatology Pathway. The group was informed that 2 

week-wait dermatology referrals have been increasing year on year, and whilst there was 
a drop during the Covid-19 pandemic this soon went back up to pre-pandemic levels. 
The proposal presented to ICBCCG was requesting a change the existing pathway for 
dermatology by moving to an Advice and Guidance service, as has been done in other 
specialties. The group agreed to a 3-month pilot of the new pathway 

 
 
2.2 During the Pandemic community services were instructed that their priorities during this 

pandemic were to:  

 Support home discharge from acute and community beds, using mandated new 
Hospital Discharge Service Requirements, and ensure patients cared for at home 
receive urgent care when they need it  

 Use digital technology to provide advice and support to patients wherever possible  

 Prioritise support for high-risk individuals advised to self-isolate for 12 weeks 

Page 11



 

    

    
    
     

 Mutual aid with health and social care partners 

 
2.4 Guidance was given about which services to stop, partially stop and which to continue. The 

aim being to release staff capacity to support other services. This meant that a great deal of 
activity was stood down and staff were re-deployed.  

 
2.7 All community services have now worked through a process of reinstating services. The 

majority of services are now working as they were prior to the pandemic, though backlogs 
and staff shortages continue to have an impact on capacity, waiting times and it some cases 
the interventions that can be offered. For example, the District Nursing Service has seen an 
increase in demand for services and an increase in the acuteness of patient’s conditions as 
a result of Covid-19, coupled with staff shortages. Due to this they are not currently offering 
routine ear syringing. 

   
 

3. End of Life Care  
 
3.1 Specialist Palliative Care teams adapted their working patterns in response to the pandemic 

and immediately set about reorganising their approaches and putting in place remote 
working.  The teams have now resumed normal working patterns and practices. Workload 
remains high with many patients having complex needs. 

 
3.2       Restricted visiting policies remain in place and Salford Royal’s Visiting Policy is reviewed 

regularly to reflect national guidance. Visiting at End of Life (EoL) is permitted but where 
families are unable to attend, the use of digital devices to maintain contact are used. There 
are also two “Cygnets” (unregistered support workers) who work across Salford Royal, 
supporting patients at EoL who have limited or no visitors. The Cygnets are there for patients 
and relatives providing much needed company, fundamental nursing care and help with the 
provision and taking of mementoes.  The feedback from this service has been positive both 
from families and ward staff. 

 
3.3       Virtual registering of deaths continues in line with national guidance. Covid-19 e-learning 

packages that were developed early on in the pandemic, e.g. verification of death and care 
after death, have continued to be used.  Education for hospital and care home staff has 
resumed on a variety of topics, including Enhanced Communication, Advance Care Planning, 
Verification of Death and End of Life Care. These have been a mixture of face to face, blended 
learning and e-learning packages.  

 
3.4       The Care Homes teams have arranged memorial services for patients who died during the 

pandemic and invited community staff and relatives to reflect and share positive stories, and 
this has been well received.  Volunteers who were recruited to deliver medications and 
documentation from the Salford Care Home Practice to all the care homes across the locality 
remain in place.  Face to face patient visits have now resumed for symptom management, 
end of life care support and Advance Care Planning wherever possible.  The Care Homes 
practice continues to receive regular Situation Reports (SitRep) regarding Covid-19 
outbreaks within the homes. Moderate numbers of staff members have been affected in 
recent weeks and consequently affected homes are closed to visitors. 

 
3.5       The Specialist Palliative Care Counsellors have resumed some face-to-face sessions, in 

homes or hubs. All guidance to ensure the safety of both staff and clients has been 

Page 12



 

    

    
    
     

followed.  Hospital projects have resumed and include Early Identification work across many 
specialities including liver and renal failure, in line with the Greater Manchester Commitments 
work plan.  The hospital and community teams are working on a joint project to improve the 
care of homeless people who are identified as approaching end of life.  A care pathway for 
patients with learning disabilities who are identified as having palliative care needs has been 
developed to ensure seamless care across hospital and community settings.  Salford Royal’s 
accreditation process has resumed which includes the assessment of processes at EoL across 
wards and departments. 

 
3.6       St Ann’s Hospice’s “Being You Centre”, incorporating all outpatient services, has continued to 

provide a virtual service with face-to-face triage reintroduced from September 2021.  Some 
medical outpatients’ arrangements have been in place since the beginning of 2021 with a full 
face-to-face service expected to commence in November 2021. 

 
 

4. Integrated Care Transformation Programme Report  

 

4.1 The delivery and assurance of the Salford integrated care transformation programme 

was measured against a number of material conditions as set out in the GM 
Investment Agreement and this included the delivery of 10 agreed outcome 

indicators.  
 
4.2  At the meeting held on 8th June new system indicators for Salford were proposed in order to 

measure system priorities agreed by the Advisory Board. The priorities are: 
 

 Adult Social Care (ASC) Market Shaping 

 Mental Health 

 Integrated Community part a) Community Support part b) Assessment and 
Diagnostics 

 Urgent Care Redesign 

 Prevention 
 
4.3 The measurement process is still in development. The aim is to continue to provide AAB with 

a monthly update on overarching performance in relation to system priorities identified. The 
measures identified for the indicators report are: 

 
 Domiciliary care –packages of care 

 Permanent admissions to care homes (Aged 65+) 

 Readmissions to hospital 

 Number of social prescribing referrals made 

 Proportion of outpatient appointments by telephone/virtual 

 Advice and guidance requests made 

 Proportion deflected from the emergency department front door (with mental 
health exclusions) 

 Local community assessment service (LCAS) contacts 

 LCAS contacts which go on to attend A&E within 7 days 

 Number of specific acute, non-elective spells in the period with a length of stay of 
1 or more days (Covid) 
 

Page 13



 

    

    
    
     

The following measures are to be confirmed: 
 

 Community diagnostic measure 

 Mental health / living well measure 
 
4.4 Permanent Admissions to Care Homes (Aged 65+) was previously part of the Greater 

Manchester Investment Agreement (GMIA) Indicator reporting. All other measures in the 
dashboard are new proposals to reflect the AAB priorities agreed and the workstream areas.  

 
4.5  A highlight report detailing the progress of the Integrated Care Transformation Programme 

was presented to AAB. The presentation given clearly outlined ongoing projects, those in 
initiation stage, those transitioning to business as usual and future projects under 
consideration:  

 

 
 
4.6  In January 2020 a business case was approved for two years transformation funding for 

investment in the Urgent Response Team, Homesafe additional staffing capacity and 
community rehabilitation/neighbourhood therapy additional staffing. The two-year period 
ends at the end of this financial year. A new business case for the service model is being 
developed and will be presented to Adults Commissioning Committee in due course. 

 
 

Page 14



 

    

    
    
     

5. Recommendations  
 
5.1 The Adults Commissioning Committee is asked to: 
 

 Note the contents of this report 
 
 
Tori Quinn 
Head of Service Improvement 

 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



 

   
 

 

    
    
    
     

Adult Commissioning Committee 

13 October 2021 
AGENDA ITEM NO 5 Adult Social Care Update Report:  
 
Item for: Assurance/Information 
 

Report of: Strategic Director of People 

Date of Paper: 04/10/21 

In case of query, please contact: Paul Walsh 

Strategic Priorities:  
(Please tick as appropriate) 

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research  

Adult Services Y 
Children’s and Maternity Services  

All Age Mental Health  
Primary Care  

Enabling Transformation  
Mayoral Priorities: 
(Please tick as appropriate) 

Tackling poverty and inequality Y 
Reducing Health Inequalities Y 

Skills and Education (A Learning City)  
Affordable Housing  

Transport and Digital Connectivity  
Tackling the Climate Change Emergency  

Vibrant Place and Spaces  
Creating an Economy for All  

Purpose of Paper:                                    

To provide an update on matters relating to Adult Social Care in Salford 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5

https://www.salford.gov.uk/cmpriorities


 

   
 

 

    
    
    
     

Further information 

How will this benefit the health and wellbeing of 
Salford residents, or the CCG or City Council? 

 
Meeting statutory needs under the Care Act 
2014 
 

How does this paper address health inequalities 
and promote inclusion? 

Meeting statutory needs under the Care Act 
2014 
 

What risks may arise as a result of this paper 
and how will they be mitigated? 

Set out in the paper 

Does this address any existing high risks facing 
the organisation and how does it reduce them? 

Set out in the paper 

Are there any possible conflicts of interest 
associated with this paper? 

No 

Will any current services or roles be affected by 
issues within this paper and what are they? 

No 

Note: Where appropriate, please ensure detail is provided. 

Document Development 

Has there been Public Engagement? NA 

Has there been Clinical Engagement? NA 

Has the impact on Salford socially, economically 
and environmentally been considered? 

NA 

Has there been an analysis of any impacts on 
equality? 

NA 

Has legal advice been obtained? NA 

Has this been to any groups or committees for 
engagement, comments, or approval?  NA 

Note: Where relevant, please provide detail and ensure that it is clear how and when particular stakeholders were 
involved in this work, that there is clarity of what the key message/decision was, and whether amendments were 
requested about any part of the work.

Page 18



 

  

  
  
  
  

  
  
   

Adult Social Care - Update 
 

1.  Executive Summary 

   
 
The report provides an update on matters relating to Adult Social Care (ASC) in Salford: 
 

 Building Back ASC 

 Transforming Care 
 Care Homes Mandatory COVID 19 Vaccination Regulation 

 ASC Providers – Salford Living Wage 

 Workforce 

 ASC – Service Developments 
 
 
 
 
 

 

2.  Building Back Adult Social Care 
 
2.1  Demand and activity analysis indicates a growth in the number of people who are 
meeting the eligibility threshold for an Adult Social Care Service in Salford. 
 
2.2 Between January 2021 and August 2021 there has been an increase of 3% in the 
number of people who are being supported. The main service areas of growth are in 
homecare, direct payments, community support and residential care short stay. In August 
2021, Salford is supporting the same number of vulnerable adults as in September 2019. 
 

 

3700

3750

3800

3850

3900

3950

4000

Se
p

-1
9

O
ct

-1
9

N
ov

-1
9

D
ec

-1
9

Ja
n

-2
0

Fe
b

-2
0

M
ar

-2
0

A
pr

-2
0

M
ay

-2
0

Ju
n-

20

Ju
l-

20

A
u

g-
20

Se
p

-2
0

O
ct

-2
0

N
ov

-2
0

D
ec

-2
0

Ja
n

-2
1

Fe
b

-2
1

M
ar

-2
1

A
pr

-2
1

M
ay

-2
1

Ju
n-

21

Ju
l-

21

A
u

g-
21

Unique Clients

Page 19



 

  

  
  
  
  

  
  
   

 
2.3 The chart below shows a clear growth trajectory that commenced at the start of the 
COVID 19 vaccination programme. 
 
2.4 While the number of clients is consistent between the two date points, the distribution 
of demand has changed with +78 people being supported in homecare and +49 in community 
support, with -67 in day care, -51 in permanent residential care and -15 permanent nursing 
care. The COVID impact on these changes is apparent with people choosing to receive their 
care in a more home-based setting. 
 
2.5 In addition to this, the build back in demand in this calendar year is characterised by 
additional complexity, with the size and associate cost of a new care package being greater 
than those existing or ending in the same period. For example, the weekly average cost of a 
home care package has grown from £577 to £603 from April to July 2021. This is also cost 
growth attributed to the increase in fee rates offer to ASC provider (see section 5 below). 
 
2.6 The savings and efficiency programme is starting to show some positive impact with a 
number of surplus services in the LD Supported Tenancies network being removed and the 
VAT pressure in the Aspire and Turning Point contracts being mitigated by moving the 
contracts to Salford City Council (novation planned for Q3). The programme will continue into 
2022/23 and will include progress on the Great Places LD supported Tenancy Scheme 
(Crompton Street, Walkden and Highfield Road, Little Hulton) and four pipeline Extra Care 
schemes (Arrow Street in Lower Broughton, Moorfield Close in Swinton, Allotment Road in 
Cadishead and the Pendleton Together scheme). 
 
2.7 The ‘Building Back Better for Social Care’ government plan was published in 
September 2021 with the main focus on raising the payment threshold for individual 
contributions. The plan indicates that LAs will be provided with additional funding to cover this 
cost and that this money will be raised through a combination of a NI and dividend tax. Further 
detail will be provided to LA ahead of the 2022/23 financial year.  
 

3.  Transforming Care 
 
3.1  Salford continues to support 3 people under Salford’s Transforming Care 
commissioning responsivity. Two people are placed in St Mary Hospital in Warrington and one 
in Meadowbrook. There are 5 Salford people who are in hospital and are the commissioning 
responsibility of NHSE. 
 
3.2 There is a CQC lead improvement programme for St Mary’s Hospital and Salford staff 
have been actively supporting the programme of work to ensure the service makes and 
sustains the required improvements. Plans are also continuing to secure a long-term 
community-based service for them. 
 

4. Care Homes Mandatory COVID 19 Vaccination Regulation 
 
4.1 On the 11 November the regulation that requires staff employed to work in care homes 
to be doubled vaccinated for Covid, comes into effect. Over recent weeks the Salford system 
has been working hard to encourage and enable people working in care homes to have their 

Page 20



 

  

  
  
  
  

  
  
   

vaccination. This has result in 1480 (91%) of staff having their first vaccination and 1318 (81%) 
with their second (as of 4 October). 
 
4.2 There are a small number of care homes who are being supported to ensure they 
secure the necessary staffing capacity for the 11th November deadline. It is not anticipated that 
there will be any service disruption for people who are being supported in our care homes 
through this new regulation.  
 

5. Adult Social Care Providers – Salford Living Wage 
 
5.1 Progress continues to align ASC providers to Salford aspiration to become a Living 
Wage city. At the time of writing this report 67 of our local providers have agreed to pay their 
workforce at least £9.25 per hour (or £9.50 for LD Supported Tenancy providers). This equates 
to 2603 people employed, with payment being backdated to the start of the 2021/22 financial 
year. 
 
5.2 There remains 9 Salford based ASC provider organisations that have yet to accept the 
fee rate uplift offer. A number of these providers are paying above the National Living Wage 
of £8.91. 
 
5.3 Commissioners will start to set out the fee rate calculation for 2022/23 over the next 
few weeks. 
 

6. Workforce 
 
6.1 As a result of the increase demand for homecare services, there has been a local 
response to support recruitment into the ASC sector. A group has been established to create 
an employment pathway for people who have expressed an interest to work in the sector. 
 
6.2 Human Resource colleagues across the Council, SRFT, SPCT and Salford CVS are 
working with the Growth Company to create a ‘care academy’ that will provide a pre-
employment care competency programme ahead of recruitment into roles within Salford 
homecare agencies. 
 
6.3 The programme will seek to secure an additional 60 jobs for the homecare providers 
in the first wave – up to the end of 2021/22.   
 
6.4 In order to address some challenges with securing social work capacity via NHS 
Professionals, notable differential pay rates compare with LA rates and pre-employment 
check, SRFT HR has agreed to temporarily adjust pay rates. Further discussions across the 
Council and SRFT are taking place to determine if the Council’s agency provider can be used 
by SRFT, or whether SRFT need to secure a different agency provider for ASC staff. 
 
6.5 An ASC workforce training paper has been developed that sets out the approach to 
ensure SRFT mandatory training reflect the current requirements for ASC staff.   
 
   
 

Page 21



 

  

  
  
  
  

  
  
   

7. Adult Social Care – Service Developments  
 
7.1 The roll-out of Liquid Logic continues. ASC has agreed a set of priority performance 
and data reports. Additional business intelligence capacity has been allocated to accelerate 
the delivery of critical BI requirements. 
 
7.2 There has been an improvement in the number of Carers Assessments being 
undertaken following a period of low performance, with both the number (185 in July)  of 
timeliness (88% within 28 day) increasing significant. 
 
7.3 There has been a worsening in the waiting times for community occupational therapy 
assessments with some people waiting in excess of 60 weeks. A business case in being 
finalised, that will be brought to ACC, to seek additional investment into the service to address 
this. 
 
7.4 The development of a new direct payment policy has been delayed due the operational 
pressures. This work has not restarted with a planned completion and implementation of a 
new Direct Payment policy for 1 April 2022. 
 
7.5 Operational pressures have impacted on the development of Quality Assurance 
framework for ASC aligned to the statutory requirements of the Care Act 2014 and other key 
legislation.  A working group has been established (chaired by the Principal Social Worker - 
PSW). The PSW for adults will set out a framework for audits that will include how issues will 
be reported on, issues for escalation and how feedback will be given to individual staff and 
wider teams to embed good practice. 
  

8. Recommendations 
 
8.1 The Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to: 
 

 Review the content of the report 

 Provide comment 
 
 
 
Paul Walsh  
Assistant Director – Integrated Commissioning 

 
 

Page 22



 

   
 

 

    
    
    
     

Adults’ Commissioning Committee  

13th October 2021 
6. Finance Report  
 
Item for: Assurance 
 

Report of: Chief Finance Officer 

Date of Paper: 5th October 2021 

In case of query, please contact: David Warhurst, Interim Chief Finance Officer 

Strategic Priorities:  
(Please tick as appropriate) 

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research  

Adult Services 

Children’s and Maternity Services  

All Age Mental Health  
Primary Care  

Enabling Transformation  
Mayoral Priorities: 
(Please tick as appropriate) 

Tackling poverty and inequality  
Reducing Health Inequalities  

Skills and Education (A Learning City)  
Affordable Housing  

Transport and Digital Connectivity  
Tackling the Climate Change Emergency  

Vibrant Place and Spaces  
Creating an Economy for All  

Purpose of Paper:                                    

 
This paper provides the Adults’ Commissioning Committee with an update relating to the 
YTD financial performance and forecast and associated risks to the financial plan of the 
Adults Integrated Fund for 2021/22.  

Page 23

Agenda Item 6

https://www.salford.gov.uk/cmpriorities


 

   
 

 

    
    
    
     

Further information 

How will this benefit the health and wellbeing of 
Salford residents, or the CCG or City Council? 

Ensuring public funding is spent 
appropriately.  Achieving Value for Money, 
ensuring that funding is available to protect 
core services. 

How does this paper address health inequalities 
and promote inclusion? 

Financial and performance pressures 
associated with the adults’ integrated fund 
services. Through management of committed 
developments and holding providers to 
account for performance. 

What risks may arise as a result of this paper 
and how will they be mitigated? 

 

Does this address any existing high risks facing 
the organisation and how does it reduce them? 

 

Are there any possible conflicts of interest 
associated with this paper? 

N/A 

Will any current services or roles be affected by 
issues within this paper and what are they? 

N/A 

Note: Where appropriate, please ensure detail is provided. 

 
Document Development 

Has there been Public Engagement? N/A 

Has there been Clinical Engagement? N/A 

Has the impact on Salford socially, economically 
and environmentally been considered? 

N/A 

Has there been an analysis of any impacts on 
equality? N/A 

Has legal advice been obtained? N/A 

Has this been to any groups or committees for 
engagement, comments, or approval?  

Elements have been reviewed by the Service and 
Finance Group 

Note: Where relevant, please provide detail and ensure that it is clear how and when particular stakeholders were 
involved in this work, that there is clarity of what the key message/decision was, and whether amendments were 
requested about any part of the work.

Page 24



 

  

  
  
  
  

  
  
   

Finance Report 
 

1.  Executive Summary 
   
 
This finance report provides the Adults’ Commissioning Committee (ACC) with an in-year 
update in relation to the financial performance of the adults’ element of the Integrated Fund.  
 
At August 2021, the adults’ element of the Integrated Fund is currently forecasting to be 
overspent by £3.8m. The last report forecast an overspend of £4.4m, an improvement in the 
position by £0.6m.  
 
At £3.8m, the Adult’s fund would be £0.7m overspent against the planned deficit of £3.1m. 
 
Section 2 – Highlights the YTD and Forecast of the adults integrated fund up to August 

2021 with a projected £3.8m overspend for the year against a planned opening adults’ 
pressure of £3.1m. The main movements are summarised below.  
 

 (£0.2m) reduction in client and customer receipts pressure 
 (£0.2m) community equipment store reduced costs 
 (£0.2m) mental health placements reduced costs 

 
Section 3 – Provides an update on the investment decisions made as part of the Adults’ 

plan for 2021/22. 
 
ACC is asked to note the financial position along with the requirement to deliver on the 
savings programme for the Adults’ Integrated Fund in 2021/22. 
 

 

2. Integrated Fund 2021/22 
 
2.1  This latest finance report provides the Adults’ Commissioning Committee (ACC) with 

the forecast position of the adults’ element of the Integrated Fund for the financial year 
(2021/22).  The appendices normally contain further detail, but it should be noted, due 
to the majority of contracts remaining on block for H1 and the same for H2 these 
appendices have been removed for this year as they provide detail on activity which is 
not currently being reported. This finance report is based on information up to the end 
of August 2021.  The Service and Finance Group (SFG) have scrutinised the position 
and agreed to the key messages. 

 
2.2 The forecast position for 2021/22 at August 2021 is an overspend of £3.8m, against a 

planned overspend of £3.1m for the adults’ integrated fund. There has been a net 
favourable movement in the forecast since the last report due to an improvement of 
£0.2m in client income along with a net £0.5m reduction in expenditure, as shown in 
Table 1 below: 

 
  

Page 25



 

  

  
  
  
  

  
  
   

Table 1: 2021/22 Financial Summary 

 
 
2.2.1 Acute/other underspends - The CCG has been mandated by NHSE to maintain set 

budget values that have been calculated nationally until the end of September 2021. 
This agreement has now been extended into the second half of the year (H2) as 
expected and means block contracts will remain in place until March 2022. All 
independent sector providers are exempt from these block arrangements and have 
returned to their normal contract arrangements of activity-based payments. 

 
2.2.2 Customer & Client Receipts - £1.7m – As part of regular monitoring of the income 

undertaken by local authority colleagues since the last report there has been a 
favourable movement of £0.2m as client income has seen an increase. However, given 
the volatility of the market it is hard to say if this trend will continue across the rest of 
the year this is still viewed as the worst-case scenario and it is hoped further recovery 
will be seen over the second half of the year.  

 
2.2.3 Community Equipment Store (CES) - £0.1m – The CES position was previously 

overstated resulting in a £0.2m favourable reduction. The CES service still has 3 staff 
vacancies currently being filled by agency workers and agency back fill for a technician. 
The telecare pressure of £50k remains unfunded as the service was recommenced 
with no budget a couple of years ago. It is also worth noting there has been a rise in 
equipment costs due to increased world shipping and raw materials costs that is out of 
local control.  Where possible, eligible costs are moved to DFG capital. 

 
2.2.5 Adult Social Care (ASC) - Although ASC is forecast to breakeven the provider is 

projecting a £1.9m overspend by the end of 2021/22. Previously we have employed a 

Page 26



 

  

  
  
  
  

  
  
   

50/50 risk share with the provider on overspends. Therefore, the position could worsen 
by another £1.0m if this is transacted in the future. 

 
2.3 Mitigations –  

 The forecast on client income reduction is expected to be a worst-case 
scenario, and improvements are expected before the end of the year 

 There is likely to be further slippage on committed developments. 
 
2.4 These mitigations mean there is reasonable assurance that the opening deficit position 

of £3.1m for the adults’ fund is deliverable. 
 
        

3. Strategy and Investments 
 
3.1 An amount of £9.8m was set to be invested in 2021/22 within Adults’ services on new 

or enhanced services across several areas at the start of 2021/22, below is an update 
on the remaining investments at August 2021 as shown in table 3 below. 

 
3.2 Investments of £2.4m have already been transferred into new or enhanced services at 

August 2021. A further £6.8m is forecast to be transacted by the end of March 2022. 
 
Table 3: Adults’ Investment Fund Summary 2021/22 

 
 
3.3 Mental Health Investment Standard (MHIS) - Several schemes haven’t materialised 

and has resulted in slippage in most of the schemes for H1. However, in order for the 
standard to be achieved a further £0.5m of new schemes needs to be identified in 

Page 27



 

  

  
  
  
  

  
  
   

order for the CCG to meet its target for 2021/22, the remaining slippage has been 
utilised to offset the overall adults’ pressure for 2021/22. 

 
3.3 Mayoral Priorities - Most of these are set to be transacted in October to the adult social 

care (ASC) provider. The contingency of £0.4m will remain with commissioners and 
will be utilised to offset any pressure for 2021/22 for ASC. 

 
3.4 Other - Most of these investments are set to be transacted in H2 with slippage from H1 

utilised to offset the overall pressure with the adults’ fund for 2021/22.  
 
 

4. Risks 

 
4.1 The opening full year plan for the Integrated Fund assumed that H2 allocations would 

approximate those confirmed for H1.  Although planning guidance has been issued 
and the actual efficiency requirement for the North West as a whole is around 1.75%, 
individual allocations to CCGs inclusive of growth and efficiency requirements have 
yet to be confirmed.  This will be a pressure on the fund as allocations will be reduced 
to achieve this efficiency. 

 
4.2 Winter pressures will likely result in additional adult social care and acute expenditure.  
 
4.3 The additional resource from the Hospital Discharge Programme is approximately 

between £2m - £2.5m by the end of October and this was previously reported as a 
potential risk to the plan if funding did not continue.  The recent planning guidance has 
confirmed that the Programme will continue to fund four weeks post discharge for the 
second half of the year, but any costs from 1 April 2022 onwards will not be funded.   

 
 

5. Recommendations 
 
5.1 The Adults’ Commissioning Committee (ACC) is asked to: 
 

 Note the financial position for 2021/22 
 Note the savings programme for 2021/22 to deliver a balanced plan 

 Note the risks outlined in section 4 above. 
 
 
David Warhurst 
Interim Chief Financial Officer, Salford CCG 
 
 
 

Page 28


	Agenda
	3 Draft Minutes of the Meeting Held on 8th September 2021
	4 Integrated Care / Community Health Care Update - Tori Quinn
	5 Adult Social Care Update - Paul Walsh
	6 Finance Report - David Warhurst

